# Vindstød A/S

Inge Lehmanns Gade 10, 8000 Aarhus C CVR no. 34 04 51 43

# Annual report 2021

Approved at the Company's annual general meeting on 24 May 2022

Chairman:

Stig Jonas Stenbeck

## **Vindstød A/S** Annual report 2021

## **Contents**

Company details	2
Statement by Management on the annual report	3
Independent auditor's report	4
Management's review	6
Financial highlights	6
Key figures	6
The Company's main activities	7
Development in activities and finacial affairs	7
Events after reporting date	7
Statutory CSR Report	8
Account of the gender composition of Management	9
Financial statements 1 January – 31 December	10
Income statement	10
Balance sheet	11
Statement of changes in equity	13
Cash flow statement	14
Notes	15

## **Company details**

Name: Vindstød A/S

Adress: Inge Lehmanns Gade 10, 6. Sal, DK-8000 Aarhus C

CVR no.: 34045143

Established: 1 November 2011

Financial year: 1 January – 31 December

Board of Directors: Stig Jonas Stenbeck, Helle Herk-Hansen, Klaus Jurgen Lindberg, Branislav Slavic and

Morten Nissen Nielsen

Executive Board: Morten Nissen Nielsen

Auditors: PricewaterhouseCoopers

Klaus Jurgen Lindberg

### Statement by Management on the annual report

Today the Board of Directors and the Executive Board have discussed and approved the annual report of Vindstød A/S for the financial year 1 January - 31 December 2021.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the Danish Financial Statements Act.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the Company's financial position at 31 December 2021 and of the results of its operations for the financial year 1 January – 31 December 2021.

Further, in our opinion, the Management's review gives a fair review of the matters discussed in the Management's review.

We recommend that the annual report be approved at the annual general meeting.

Aarhus, 24 May 2022 Executive Board:

Morten Nissen Nielsen

Board of Directors:

Stig Jonas Stenbeck Chairman

Branislav Slavic

Helle Herk-Hansen

100.01

3

#### Independent auditor's report

#### To the shareholders of Vindstød A/S

#### **Opinion**

In our opinion, the Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company at 31 December 2021, and of the results of the Company's operations and cash flows for the financial year 1 January - 31 December 2021 in accordance with the Danish Financial Statements Act.

We have audited the Financial Statements of Vindstød A/S for the financial year 1 January - 31 December 2021, which comprise income statement, balance sheet, statement of cash flows, statement of changes in equity and notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies ("financial statements").

#### **Basis for Opinion**

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) and the additional requirements applicable in Denmark. Our responsibilities under those standards and requirements are further described in the *Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements* section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and the additional ethical requirements applicable in Denmark, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

#### Statement on Management's Review

Management is responsible for Management's Review.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover Management's Review, and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read Management's Review and, in doing so, consider whether Management's Review is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Moreover, it is our responsibility to consider whether Management's Review provides the information required under the Danish Financial Statements Act.

Based on the work we have performed, in our view, Management's Review is in accordance with the Financial Statements and has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Danish Financial Statements Act. We did not identify any material misstatement in Management's Review.

#### Management's Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the Danish Financial Statements Act, and for such internal control as Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

### Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs and the additional requirements applicable in Denmark will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs and the additional requirements applicable in Denmark, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We-also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
  fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
  material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error as fraud may
  involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
  that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.
- Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and contents of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that gives a true and fair view.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Aarhus 24 May 2022

**PricewaterhouseCoopers** 

Statsautoriseret Revisionspartnerselskab

CVR no. 33 77 12 31

Claus Dalager

State Authorised Public Accountant

mne26745

Thomas Riis

State Authorised Public Accountant

mne32174

## **Management's review**

## **Financial highlights**

DKKm	2021	2020	2019	2018	2017
Key figures					
Revenue	1,644.8	819.7	490.8	408.6	279.9
Gross margin	54.4	45.7	34.2	20.4	17.1
Operating profit/loss	46.5	38.8	28.7	15.9	13.4
Profit/loss from net financials	-0.4	-0.3	-0.2	-0.1	-0.1
Profit/loss for the year	35,9	30.0	22.3	12.2	10.3
Non-current assets	0.4	0.5	0.5	0.6	0.6
Current assets	501.9	330.1	266.2	240.9	181.8
Total assets	502.4	330.6	266.6	241.5	182.4
Equity	53.6	47.7	40.0	30.0	28.0
Long-term liabilities	0.0	0.5	0.1	0	0
Short-term liabilities	449.0	282.4	226.5	211.5	154.4
Cash flows from operating activ-					
ities	22.8	31.6	12.9	-0.2	-103.9
Cash flows from investing activi-	22.0	31.0	12.9	0.2	103.9
ties	0	0	0	0	0
Cash flows from financing activ-					
ities	-30.0	-21.9	-12.1	-10.3	0
Total cash flows	-7.2	9.7	0.8	-10.5	-103.9
Amount relating to investments					
in property, plant and equip-	0	0	0		0
ment	0	0	0	0	0
Current ratio	111,9 %	120.5 %	117.5 %	113.9 %	117.8 %
Equity ratio	11.0 %	17.0 %	15.0 %	12.4 %	15.4 %
Return on equity	70.8 %	80.1 %	63.6 %	42.2 %	45.1 %
Average number of full-time					
employees	16	14	11	9	7

Financial ratios are calculated in accordance with the Danish Finance Society's guidelines. For terms and definitions, please see the accounting policies.

### The Company's main activities

The company's purpose is to conduct business with the sale of physical wind turbine power and activities within solar energy.

#### Development in activities and financial affairs

This is Vindstøds tenth yearly report.

The gross profit for the year accumulates to 54.4 mDKK compared to 45.7 mDKK prior year. The result before tax accumulates to 46.1 mDKK compared to 38.5 mDKK prior year. The results exceeds the expectations for the year and the management finds the results very satisfying. Compared to the growth in profits in previous years, this year has been slowed down due to the volatility on the energy market, primarily caused by the war in Ukraine and the aftermath of the Covid-19 pandemic.

More than 2,500 Danish windmills contribute with energy production to the clients of Vindstød. Supplementing the climate friendly energy production, the company is also based on a modern IT-platform from EnergyCodes.dk that handles all energy- end client related processes. The objective with the platform is to ensure a customer oriented and price efficient operation.

When Vindstød asks its customers, why they choose Vindstød; two reasons dominate:

- to achieve a lower electricity bill
- to make a climate friendly choice

During the year, Vindstød has continued existing and further developed new larger IT-projects within the Vattenfall group. This has a positive effect on the operation and the innovation of the company.

#### Outlook

The management expects a result before tax for 2022 of 20-45 mDKK primarily depending on the current situation on the energy market.

### Events after reporting date

No events have occurred after the reporting date that may materially affect the financial position of the company.

#### Statutory CSR report

Vindstød A/S refers to the Vattenfall Group policies in the CSR area in compliance with section 99a (7) of the Danish Financial Statements Act on the reporting of corporate social responsibility.

The Vattenfall Group has decided to comply with the principles defined in the UN Global Compact guidelines, and therefore, Vattenfall's corporate social responsibility work is subject to these principles. Vattenfall's corporate social responsibility work comprises seven areas:

- Environmental impact
- Business ethics
- Anti-corruption policies
- Human rights
- Working environment
- Ethnic diversity
- Gender equality

The results of the environmental efforts are discussed below.

The Company's work in relation to business ethics and anti-corruption policies is reflected in the Company's code of conduct together with a systematic registration of suppliers.

#### Corporate social responsibility (CSR)

Vattenfall depends on local communities, employees, customers and society at large, including the Company's immediate neighbours, policymakers, environmental organisations, owners and financial markets.

Without the confidence and trust of the surrounding world, we will not be able to operate and develop our business – in short: corporate responsibility creates value. Open and transparent dialogue and corporate responsibility are key to our day-to-day operations.

Each year, Vattenfall publishes a CSR report (on the Group's social responsibility) which complies with the guidelines of Global Reporting Initiative (GRI). The CSR report provides information that enables the measurement and assessment of the Company's ability to meet the expectations of local communities. The report gives access to data on Vattenfall's results in an environmental, social and financial perspective. Read the CSR report and download it at Vattenfall's website:

 $\underline{https://group.vattenfall.com/siteassets/corporate/investors/annual-reports/2021/vattenfall-annual-and-sustainability-report2021.pdf$ 

Safety is one our core values which also involves the safety of our employees, business partners and local communities. We must always make sure that our operations do not interfere with public health and safety. Vattenfall's definition of absence owing to industrial accidents is reflected in a financial ratio that is included in the monthly follow-up of all entities.

Vattenfall's working environment policy supports this work, and the Vattenfall is OHSAS 18001 certified. The working environment organisation at the individual locations ensures on a daily basis that the safety rules are complied with. Improvements to the working environment are continuously made in all departments of the Company.

The Company aims to increase the awareness, skills and knowledge of safety and health and to develop a safety and health culture. All employees at Vattenfall must be role models.

### Account of the gender composition of Management

The Board of Directors of Vindstød A/S has set a goal for the under-represented gender in the board at 33-40%. It is the Board of Directors' intention to meet the goal by within 3-5 years. At present, the under-represented gender accounts for 20% of the board members appointed by the general meeting of shareholders.

The Company is part of Vattenfall Group, which has a goal of increasing diversity since an equal representation of gender will contribute positively to the performance of the company.

Vattenfall Group is running programs to support an equal representation of gender on all management levels. The Company has the goal to become "employer of choice" for all genders.

#### Impact on the external environment

It is Vattenfall's goal that the Group should be a leading developer of environmental, sustainable energy production. Vattenfall has during 2017 defined a new purpose "Power Climate Smarter Living" with a goal to become fossil free within one generation.

Vattenfall exists to help all our customers power their lives in ever climate smarter ways and free from fossil fuel within one generation. The world urgently needs to find alternative ways of powering and heating its businesses, cities and homes more cleanly. Change has to happen, and fast. The solution is energy that is 100% free from fossil fuel and that powers all aspects of people's lives, including heating, transportation and manufacturing. Power Climate Smarter Living has been defined as Vattenfall's purpose and is the starting point for the strategy.

Following the purpose statement strategic objectives have been defined as

- Leading towards sustainable consumption
- Leading towards sustainable production
- Having high performing operations
- Having empowered and engaged people

#### **Data Ethics**

The company has not formulated a policy for data ethics yet. The company intends to adopt the Vattenfall Group policy on data ethics when this has been finalized. The company complies with GDPR regulations including but not limited to customer rights to be deleted etc.

## **Income statement**

Note		2021	2020
	Revenue	1,644,776,848	819,746,172
	Operating costs	-1,577,683,621	-755,396,624
2	Other costs	12,650,402	18,643,039
	Gross margin	54,442.825	45,706,509
3	Staff costs	-7,954,572	-6,859,660
	Amortisation, depreciation and impairment losses	-3,000	-22,977
	Operating profit/loss	46,485,253	38,823,872
	Financial income	138,407	75,617
	Financial expenses	-573.075	-362,189
	Profit/loss before tax	46,050,585	38,537,300
4	Tax for the year	-10,139,122	-8,556,792
	Profit/loss for the year	35,911,463	29,980,508

## **Balance sheet**

Note	2021 2020
ASSETS	
Non-current assets	
Intangible assets	
5 Goodwill	0 3,000
	0 3,000
Property, plant and equipment	
Fixtures and fittings, plant and equipment	0 0
	0 0
6 Financial assets	
	2,500 432,500
Other securities and investments	0 24,206
432,	2,500 456,706
Total non-current assets 432,	2,500 459,706
Current assets	
Receivables	
Trade receivables 50,140	
Receivables from group enterprises 336,569	9,875 272,714,246
	38,615 108,086
Corporation tax receivable	0 117
Other receivables 107,096	6,909 18,593,786
493,945	314,975,917
Cash 7,977	7,310 15,168,123
Total current assets 501,923	330,144,040
TOTAL ASSETS 502,355	5,732 330,603,746

## **Balance sheet**

Note	2021	2020
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Equity		
7 Share capital	1,333,333	1,333,333
Share premium account	354,167	354,167
Retained earnings	16,036,104	16,036,104
Proposed dividends	35,911,463	29,980,508
Total equity	53,635,067	47,704,112
Noncurrent liabilities		
Other payables	0	464,086
	0	464,086
Current liabilities	000 000 =04	100 40= 046
Prepayments received from customers Trade payables	208,998,524 226,219,290	199,485,346 53,835,531
Payables to group enterprises	220,219,290	03,030,031
Corporation tax payable	10,156,090	8,589,635
Other payables	3,346,761	20,525,036
Total current liabilities	448,720,665	282,435,548
	<del></del>	-
Total liabilities	448,720,665	282,899,634
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES	502,355,732	330,603,746

Accounting policies
 Related parties
 Contractual obligations and contingencies, etc.

## Statement of changes in equity

Note		Share capi- tal	Share pre- mium ac- count	Retained earnings	Dividend proposed for the year	Total
	Equity at 1 January 2020	1,333,333	354,167	16,036,104	22,254,920	39,978,524
	Distributed dividend	0	0	0	-22,254,920	-22,254,920
	Transfer, see "Appropriation of profit/loss"	0	0	0	29,980,508	29,980,508
	Equity at 1 January 2021	1,333,333	354,167	16,036,104	29,980,5080	47,704,1124
	Distributed dividend	0	0	0	-29,980,508	-29,980,508
10	Transfer, see "Appropriation of profit/loss"	0	0	0	35,911,463	35,911,463
	Equity at 31 December 2021	1,333,333	354,167	16,036,104	35,911,463	53,635,067

## **Cash flow statement**

Note	2021	2020
Profit/loss for the year Adjustments for non-cash transactions Changes in working capital	35,911,463 10,588,009 -14,660,812	29,980,508 8,866,341 -831,016
Cash generated from operations before net financials Interest received Interest paid Corporation tax paid	<b>31,808,660</b> 138,407 -573,075 -8,589,518	<b>38,015,833</b> 75,617 -362,190 -6,150,993
Cash flows from operating activities	22,784,474	31,578,267
Raising of loan in the Employees' Fund for Residual Holiday Funds Distributed dividend	5,221 -29,980,508	335,984 -22,254,920
Cash flows from financing activities	-29,975,287	-21,918,936
Cash flows for the year Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year	<b>-7,190,813</b> 15,168,123	<b>9,659,331</b> 5,508,792
Cash and cash equivalents, year end	7,977,310	15,168,123

#### **Notes**

#### 1 Accounting policies

The annual report of Vindstød A/S for 2021 has been prepared in accordance with the provisions in the Danish Financial Statements Act applying to large reporting class C entities. Vindstød A/S has changed reporting class compared to last year.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the same accounting policies as last year.

#### Foreign currency translation

On initial recognition, transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the transaction date. Foreign exchange differences arising between the exchange rate at the transaction date and the rate at the date of payment are recognised in the income statement as financial income or financial expenses.

Receivables and payables and other monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at closing rates. The difference between the exchange rates at the balance sheet date and the date at which the receivable or payable arose or was recognised in the latest financial statements is recognised in the income statement as financial income or financial expenses.

#### Consolidated financial statements

Referring to section 112(1) of the Danish Financial Statements Act, no consolidated financial statements are prepared. The financial statements for Vindstød A/S and its group entities are part of the consolidated financial statements for Vattenfall AB

#### **Income statement**

#### Revenue

Revenue comprising sale of electricity and is recognized in revenue when transfer and risks to the buyer has taken place. Revenue is measured at fair value of the agreed consideration exclusive of VAT and taxes charged on behalf of third parties. All discounts and rebates granted are recognised in revenue.

## Cost of sales

Cost of sales comprises the cost of sales in the interim period measured at historical cost.

#### Other external expenses

Other external expenses comprise expenses relating to distribution, sale, advertising, administration, premises, bad debts, operating leases, etc.

#### Staff costs

Staff costs comprise wages and salaries, including holiday allowance and pensions, and other social security costs, etc., for the Company's employees. Refunds received from public authorities are deducted from staff costs.

#### Amortisation, depreciation and impairment losses

Amortisation/depreciation and impairment of goodwill and property, plant and equipment consists of the fiscal year's depreciations and impairments respectively calculated from the residual values and usage time for each assets and completed impairment tests and gains and losses on the sale of goodwill and property, plant and equipment.

#### **Notes**

#### 1 Accounting policies (continued)

#### Financial income and expenses

Financial income and expenses comprise interest income and expense, charges in respect of finance leases, realised and unrealised gains and losses on securities, payables and transactions denominated in foreign currencies, amortisation of financial assets and liabilities as well as surcharges and refunds under the on-account tax scheme, etc.

Dividend from investments in group entities is recognised in the income statement in the financial year when the dividend is declared.

#### Tax for the year

Tax for the year comprises current tax for the year and changes in deferred tax. The tax expense relating to the profit/loss for the year is recognised in the income statement, and the tax expense relating to amounts directly recognised in equity is recognised directly in equity.

#### **Balance sheet**

#### Intangible assets

On initial recognition, intangible assets are measured at cost.

Acquired goodwill is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation. Goodwill is amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life, which is 5 years.

#### Property, plant and equipment

On initial recognition, property, plant and equipment are measured at cost.

Fixtures and fittings, tools and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation. Land is not depreciated.

The basis of depreciation is cost less expected residual value at the end of the useful life.

Cost comprises the purchase price and any costs directly attributable to the acquisition until the date when the asset is available for use.

Where individual components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items, which are depreciated separately.

The basis of depreciation, which is calculated as cost less any residual value, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the expected useful life. The expected useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Fixtures and fittings, plant and equipment 5 years

The basis of depreciation is based on the residual value of the asset and is reduced by impairment losses, if any. The depreciation period and the residual value are determined at the time of acquisition and are reassessed every year. Where the residual value exceeds the carrying amount of the asset, no further depreciation charges are recognised.

In case of changes in the amortisation period or the residual value, the effect on the depreciation charges is recognised prospectively as a change in accounting estimates.

#### **Notes**

#### 1 Accounting policies (continued)

Gains and losses on the disposal of items of property, plant and equipment are calculated as the difference between the selling price less costs to sell and the carrying amount at the date of disposal. The gains or losses are recognised in the income statement as other operating income or other operating expenses, respectively.

#### Investments in group entities

Investments in group entities is measured at cost. The investments are impaired to recoverable amount if this is lower than the accounting value.

#### Other securities and investments

Other securities and investments, recognised under "Non-current assets", comprise unlisted securities measured at fair value.

#### Impairment of non-current assets

The carrying amount of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment is tested annually for evidence of impairment other than the decrease in value reflected by amortisation/depreciation.

Impairment tests are conducted on individual assets or groups of assets when there is evidence of impairment. Assets are written down to the lower of the carrying amount and the recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the net selling price of an asset and its value in use. The value in use is calculated as the net present value of the expected net cash flows from the use of the asset or the group of assets and the expected net cash flows from the disposal of the asset or the group of assets after the end of the useful life.

Previously recognised impairment losses are reversed when the reason for recognition no longer exists.

#### Receivables

Receivables are measured at amortised cost.

An impairment loss is recognised if there is objective evidence that a receivable or a group of receivables is impaired. If there is objective evidence that an individual receivable has been impaired, an impairment loss is recognised on an individual basis.

Receivables in respect of which there is no objective evidence of individual impairment are assessed for objective evidence of impairment on a portfolio basis. The portfolios are primarily based on the country of domicile and credit ratings of the debtors in accordance with the Group's credit risk management policy. The objective evidence applied to portfolios is determined based on historical loss experience.

Impairment losses are calculated as the difference between the carrying amount of the receivables and the net present value of the expected cash flows, including the realisable value of any collateral received. The effective interest rate for the individual receivable or portfolio is used as discount rate.

#### Cash

Cash comprise cash holdings and bank deposits.

#### **Notes**

#### 1 Accounting policies (continued)

#### **Equity**

#### Dividend

Dividend proposed for the year is recognised as a liability at the date when they are adopted at the annual general meeting (declaration date). Dividend expected to be distributed for the financial year is presented as a separate line item under "Equity".

#### Income tax and deferred tax

Current tax payables and receivables are recognised in the balance sheet as tax computed on the taxable income for the year, adjusted for tax on prior-year taxable income and tax paid on account.

Deferred tax is measured using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences between the carrying amount and the tax base of assets and liabilities. Where alternative tax rules can be applied to determine the tax base, deferred tax is measured based on Management's intended use of the asset or settlement of the liability, respectively.

Deferred tax assets, including the tax value of tax loss carry-forwards, are recognised at the expected value of their utilisation; either as a set-off against tax on future income or as a set-off against deferred tax liabilities in the same legal tax entity and jurisdiction.

Adjustment is made to deferred tax resulting from elimination of unrealised intra-group profits and losses.

Deferred tax is measured according to the tax rules and at the tax rates applicable in the respective countries at the balance sheet date when the deferred tax is expected to crystallise as current tax.

#### Prepayments received from customers.

Prepayments from customers comprise amounts received in advance.

#### Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised at the date of borrowing at the net proceeds received less transaction costs paid. On subsequent recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, corresponding to the capitalised value, using the effective interest rate. Accordingly, the difference between the proceeds and the nominal value is recognised in the income statement over the term of the loan.

Financial liabilities also include the capitalised residual lease liability in respect of finance leases.

Other liabilities are measured at net realisable value.

#### Notes

#### 1 Accounting policies (continued)

#### Cash flow statement

The cash flow statement shows the Company's cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities for the year, the year's changes in cash and cash equivalents as well as the Company's cash and cash equivalents at the beginning and end of the year.

#### Cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from operating activities are calculated as the profit/loss for the year adjusted for non-cash operating items, changes in working capital and corporation tax paid.

#### Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flow from investing activities comprise payments in connection with acquisitions and disposals of entities, activities and intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and investments.

#### Cash flows from financing activities

Cash flows from financing activities comprise changes in the size or composition of the Company's share capital and related costs as well as the raising of loans, repayment of interest-bearing debt and payment of dividends to shareholders.

#### Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term marketable securities with a term of three months or less that are subject to only minor risks or changes in value.

#### Cash flow statement

Financial ratios are calculated in accordance with the Danish Finance Society's guidelines.

The financial ratios stated under "Financial highlights" have been calculated as follows:

Current ratio Current liabilities Current liabilities

Equity ratio Equity at year end x 100

Total equity and liabilities at year end

Return on equity Profit/loss after tax x 100

Average equity

#### **Notes**

#### 2 Fee to the auditors appointed by the Company in general meeting

Audit fee are not disclosed with reference to section 96(3) of the Danish Financial Statements Act. The fee is specifies in the consolidated financial statements for Vattenfall AB.

		2021	2020
3	Staff costs		
	Wages and salaries	7,741,456	6,542,719
	Other social security costs	121,646	103,990
	Other staff costs	91,470	212,948
		7,954,572	6,859,657
	Average number of full-time employees	16	14

By reference to section 98b(3), (ii), of the Danish Financial Statements Act, remuneration to Management is not disclosed. Remunerations to the Board of Directors are paid by Vattenfall Group.

		2021	2020
4	Tax for the year		
•	Current tax for the year	10,108,593	8,673,401
	Adjustment of the deferred tax charge for the year	-109,063	-116,609
	Adjustments regarding previous years	139,592	0
		10,139,122	8,556,792

The Company is subject to the Danish rules on compulsory joint taxation with the Danish companies subject to control by Vattenfall AB.

The Danish income tax charge is allocated between profit making and loss making Danish entities in proportion to their taxable income (full obsorption).

### 5 Intangible assets

	Goodwill
Cost at 1 January 2021	15,000
Cost at 31 December 2021	15,000
Depreciation and impairment losses at 1 January 2021 Amortisation	-12,000 -3,000
Depreciation and impairment losses at 31 December 2021	-15,000
Carrying amount at 31 December 2021	0

#### Notes

#### 6 Financial assets

	Investments in group entities	Other securities and investments
Cost at 1 January 2021	432,500	24,206
Cost at 31 December 2021	432,500	0
Value adjustments at 1 January 2021	0	0
Value adjustments at 31 December 2021	0	0
Carrying amount at 31 December 2021	432,500	0

#### 7 Share capital

The share capital comprises 1,333,333 shares of DKK 1.00 nominal value each. All shares rank equally.

The Company's share capital has remained DKK 1,333,333 in the past 5 years.

#### 8 Related parties

Vindstød A/S' related parties comprise the following:

#### Parties exercising control

Related party	Domicile	Basis for control
Vattenfall AB	Stockholm, Sweden	Ultimate Parent

### Subsidiaries

	<u>Headquarter</u>	Legal form	<b>Ownership</b>	<b>Equity</b>	Profit/Loss
Subsidiary:					
Energycodes.dk ApS	Aarhus	ApS	100.00	3,643,079	3,450,528

The Company solely discloses related party transactions that have not been carried out on an arm's length basis, cf. section 98c(7) of the Danish Financial Statements Act.

All transactions have been carried out on an arm's length basis.

## 9 Contractual obligations and contingencies, etc.

#### **Contingent liabilities**

The Company has signed lease agreements.

The leases can be cancelled with a 3 and 6-month notice and the total liability is tDKK 293.

The Company is taxed with the other Danish group entities. The Company is jointly and severally liable with the other jointly taxed companies for the total income tax and must comply with any obligations to withhold tax at source on interest, royalties and dividends for the jointly taxed companies.

The Company is jointly taxed with Vattenfall A/S.

## Notes

		2021	2020
10	Distribution of profit/loss		
	Proposed distribution of profit/loss		
	Proposed dividend	35,911,463	29,980,508
		35,911,463	29,980,508
11	Adjustments for non-cash transactions Depreciation/amortisation and impairment Financial income Financial expenses Tax for the year Other adjustments	3,000 -138,407 573,075 10,156,090 -35,749 <b>10,558,009</b>	22,977 -75,617 362,189 8,556,792 0 <b>8,866,341</b>
12	Changes in working capital Changes in receivables Changes in prepayments and trade and other payables	-178,939,593 164,278,781 -14,660,812	-54,332,239 53,501,222 - <b>831,01</b> 7